
 

 

 

 

Alcohol and Entertainment 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Thursday 30 January 2025 at 10.00 am 
Boardrooms 3 & 4 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers 
Way, Wembley HA9 0FJ 
 
Please note that this meeting will be held in person with members of the Sub-
Committee required to attend in person. 
 

The press and public are also welcome to attend this meeting in 
person. Please note the meeting is not scheduled for live webcast 
 

Membership: 
 
Members Substitute Members: 
Councillors: 
 
Ahmed (Chair) 
Hylton 
Lorber 
 

Councillors: 
  
Bajwa, Chohan, Ethapemi, Hack, Long, 
Mahmood, Rajan-Seelan 

 

  
  
 

For further information contact: Devbai Bhanji, Governance Assistant 
Tel: 020 8937 6841; Email: devbai.bhanji@brent.gov.uk 

 

For electronic copies of minutes and agendas please visit: 
Council meetings and decision making | Brent Council 

 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.brent.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-meetings-and-decision-making


 

2 
 

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest: 
 

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they 
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and 
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.  
 

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its 
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent. 
 

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and 
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the 
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the 
item, except that they may first make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating 
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes. 
 
*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
(a)  Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit gain. 
(b)  Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying 

out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.  
(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or 

their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council. 
(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer. 
(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the 

Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest. 
(g)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or 

land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued 
share capital. 

 

**Personal Interests: 
The business relates to or affects: 
(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and: 

 To which you are appointed by the council; 

 which exercises functions of a public nature; 

 which is directed is to charitable purposes; 

 whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a 
political party of trade union). 

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as 
a member in the municipal year;  

or 
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or 
financial position of: 

 You yourself; 

 a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close 
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.  

 



 

3 
 

 
Agenda 
 
Introductions, if appropriate. 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members  
 

 

2 Declarations of Interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature 
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests 
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate. 
 

 

3 Application for the Review a Premises Licence by Metropolitan 
Police for the premises known as Alaturca Lounge, The Lodge, 
Kingsbury Road, NW9 9HA, pursuant to the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003  

 

1 - 98 

 
Date of the next meeting:  Date Not Specified 
 

 Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting. 

 The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 
members of the public.   

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

Application for the Review a Premises Licence 
 

Name of Applicant: Metropolitan Police 

  

Name & Address of Premises: Alaturca Lounge, The Lodge, Kingsbury Road, NW9 9HA 

  

Applicants Agent:  

  

 
 
1. Application 
 
 The application is for the review of a premises licence held by Mr Gokcan Algul. The 

premises are known as Alaturca Lounge, The Lodge, Kingsbury Road, NW9 9HA. 
 
 
2. Grounds for Review 
 
 The grounds for review are the Prevention of Crime & Disorder, Public Safety and the 

Prevention of Public Nuisance. 
 

The premises has been subject to multiple complaints from local residents regarding 
constant noise nuisance. 

  
The Licensing Authority have conducted multiple compliance visits and found constant 
breaches of the premises licence conditions. 
 
The Police carried out multiple visits and found that the premises were still carrying out 
licensable activities during the suspension period imposed by the licensing committee at 
the previous review hearing. 
 

 
3. Relevant Representations 
 
 Representations have been received from the Police, Licensing Officer and local residents. 
 
 
4. Background 
 

These premises are currently licensed for: 
 
Regulated Entertainment and to remain open from 08:00hrs to 23:00hrs Monday to 
Sunday. 
The Sale or Supply of Alcohol (For consumption on the premises) from 10:00hrs – 23:00hrs 
Monday to Sunday. 

 
The Designated Premises Supervisor is Mr Gokcan Algul. 
 
A review of the premises licence was heard by the licensing committee on 8 May 2024, 
where it was determined that the licence be suspended for a period of 3 months from 4 
June 2024 to 4 September 2024. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
5. Determination 
   
 The steps the Committee may take are: 

 

 To modify, remove or add conditions 

 To exclude the sale of alcohol or other licensable activity 

 Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor 

 Suspend the licence for up to 3 months. 

 Revoke the licence 
 
 
 
 
6. Associated Papers 

A. Review Application 
B. Police Rep 
C. Licensing Rep 
D. Resident Reps 
E. OS Map 

 
 

 

Page 2



Brent

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A
PREMISES LICENCE OR CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers
are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copyof the completed form for your records.

I... Police constable Brendon ll/lclnnes on behalf of the Commissioner of Metropolitan Police
Service........................................................................ •
.... [insert name of applicant] apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for
the review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (delete as applicable).

Part f - Premises or club premises details

Name and postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Alaturca
The Lodge restaurant,
Kingsbury Road
Wembley

Post Town London I Post Code NW9 9HA

• Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate. MR Gokcan Algul, 6 Fell House
Poinnings Road, London, N19 5LG

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate 16394

Review of Premises or Club
Premises Application

$

Page 3

Linda.Legister
Rectangle

Linda.Legister_1
Rectangle



Part 2 - Applicant details

lam

1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the-premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

Please tick / Yes

□
□
□
□

2)

3)

a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below)

X

□

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick
Mw Dl

Surname

Ms Ll Miss O we Ll

First names

Other title D
(for example, Rev)

I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address
if different from
premises address

Please tick ✓ Yes□

Post Town L_ ___J· l Postcode '~----------~

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Premises Application

%

2 Reviewof Premises or Club
Page 4



-· - -- ---- ------,~----------------

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITYAPPLICANT

Name and address

PC Brendon Mcinnes 1187NW
Wembley Police Station
603 Harrow Road
Wembley
HAO 2HH

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address Brendon.Mclnness@met.police.uk

This application to review relates. to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)
The Venue

X
X
X
□

Alaturca Lounge is a Turkish Restaurant situated in Roe Green Park on Kingsbury Road NW9 9HA. The venue is in
close proximity to residential premises as well as commercial premises."
The premises currently has a Premises licence that allow the following activities to take place:

Plays and Films from 09.00hrs till 23.00hrs from Monday to Sunday.

Live Music from 08.00hrs till 23.00hrs from Monday to Sunday.

Recorded Music from 08.00hrs till 23.00hrs from Monday to Sunday.

Dance from 09.00hrs till 23.00hrs from Monday to Sunday.

Sale or Supply of alcohol on the premises from 10.00hrs till 23.00hrs from Monday to Sunday.

Open to the public from 08.00hrs till 23.00hrs from Monday to Sunday.

\
All licensable activities are to cease at 23.00hrs every day.

On the 20/07/2023, Mr Algul, the licence holder for Alaturca Lounge applied for a variation of the premises

Premises Application

%

3 Review of Premises or Club
Page 5



licence to extend the his operating schedule for licensable activites to continue until 01.00hrs Monday to Friday
and 03.00hrs Saturday and Sunday. Hòwever this application was withdrawn ·by Mr Algul's agent. Therefore the
venue has never had a licence to operate beyond 23.00hrs on any given day.

Alaturca Lounge has been the subject of multiple complaints from local residents in the past regarding constant
noise nuisance. The local authority have conducted multiple compliance visits at the venue and discovered
constant breaches of conditions on the premises licence which led to the council submitting an application .to
review the premises licence for Alaturca lounge.

The hearing for the review of the premises licence took place on the 08/05/2024 at Brent Civic Centre, Engineers
Way, Wembley, HA9 0FJ. The result of the hearing was decided by the Sub-Committee and the decision was that
the Premises Licence for Alaturca lounge was to be suspended for three (3) months from 04/06/2024 to
04/09/2024.

Premises Application

¢

4 Review of Premises or Club
Page 6



Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance
note 2)
During the suspension period, Police have been made aware that the venue were still carrying out licensable
activities. These licensable activities were not only taking place with in the licensable hours as permitted by the
premises licence should it had not been suspended but way beyond the licensable hours. This has been
supported by council CCTV which shows people entering and leaving the venue between the hours of 00.00hrs
and 04.00hrs on various dates. CCTV shows people all dressed up is if for a night out. Although the CCTV does not
show that licensable activities were taking place it did lead police to suspect that licensable activities were taking
place and prompted a visit to the venue.by police. •

VISITS.

I have visited the venue on five occasions over four different dates. During the visits there were multiple
breaches of the premises licence found and offences identified which prompted the next visit

VISIT to the venue 20/07/2024

Police visited Alaturca Lounge on the 20/07/2024 at 01.30hrs. Venue was still open. Music playing, Large amount
of people inside the venue consuming food and alcohol. License holder and DPS could not produce a copy of the
premises licence or his personal licence. Conditions of licence breached being condition 9 and condition 17.
Offences identified under the Licensing Act 2003 - Section 57, not producing the premises licence. Section 135,
not producing a personal licence. Section 136, unauthorised licensable.activities and Section 138, keeping alcohol
for unauthorised sale.

Statements and Body Worn Video provided by:
PS SULLIVAN
PC MCINNES
PC HICKS

VISIT to the venue 26/07/2024

On the 26/07/2024 Police returned to the Premises and requested CCTV from the venue for the evening on the
19/07/2024 going into Saturday morning the 20/07/2024. CCTV could not be provided. This again another breach
of the licence. Breaching condition 5. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of
the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premise is open. This staff member must be able
to provide a Police or Authorised Council Officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute
minimum of delay when requested.
A copy Premises licence or-personal licence could not be produced. Condition 5 of premises licence breached
therefore licence is invalid. Offences identified under the Licensing Act 2003 - Section 57, not producing the
premises licence. Section 135, not producing a personal licence. Section 136, unauthorised licensable activities
and Section 138, keeping alcohol'for unauthorised sale.

Police returned again later that evening on the 26/07/2024 at 23.30hrs. Again the venue was open and had three
SIA staff on the door. Police asked the SIA staff what time they were closing that evening. SIA informed police
that they were closing at 02.00hrs. This at 23.30 hours was already outside of the licensable hours. Inside the
venue there was music playing and as police entered three customers left.

Statements and Body Worn Video provided by:

PC MCINNES
PC HICKS.

Premises Application

%

5 Review of Premises or Club
Page 7



PACE INTERVIEW

Mr ALGUL was invited to attend Wembley Police Station on the 01/08/2024 at 13.00 hrs for a Caution +3
interview regarding the unauthorised licensable activities taking place at the venue. Police also requested the
CCTV to be provided. Mr Aigu I provided a No Comment Interview with a prepared statement stating that he
could not provide the CCTV requested as the CCTV hard drive only holds footage for 7 Days. This is another
breach of his licence. Condition 1 states - CCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and·
maintained in a good working condition and recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to
police and authorised Officers from Brent Council upon request.

In the weeks that followed Police discovered that Mr ALGUL opened his venue on the 01/08/2024 and continued
trading until 02.00hrs the following morning showing no regard for the conditions on his licence nor the fact that
he had been interviewed regarding unauthorised licensable activities. Police requested a meeting with Mr ALGUL
at his venue on the 08/08/2024 in order to view the CCTV from the past 7 days. Mr ALGUL agreed. On the day Mr
ALGUL did not arrive and stated that the venue was not opening that evening. Police then discovered that the
venue did indeed open that evening.

VISIT to the venue 22/08/2024

On the 22/08/2024 Police conducted another licensing visit at the venue after being provided evidence that the
venue was still operating beyond its licensable hours. Police entered the venue at 23.30hrs and the venue was
open. Music playing. People inside with drinks in front of them and smoking Shisha. Licence holder and DPS
could not produce a copy of the premises licence or Personal licence.
Police then issues Mr ALGUL a Notification of alleged offences under the licensing act 2003 followed by a Closure
Notice - Section 19 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001: Thus giving Mr ALGUL 7 days to rectify the issues with
regards to his premises licence and the unauthorised _licensable activities before police considered applying to
court for a closure order. As the venue was trading past its opening hours without the correct authorisation thus
being an offence of, unauthorised licensable activities under section 136 of the licensing act 2003.
A number of conditions were breached on his licence and Offences identified under the Licensing Act 2003-
Section 57, not producing the premises licence. Section 135, not producing a personal licence. Section 136,
unauthorised licensable activities and Section 138, keeping alcohol for unauthorised sale.

Statements and Body Worn Video provided by:
PC MCINNES
PC HICKS

VISIT to the venue 07/09/2024 •

Licensing Police attended the venue on the 07/09/2024 at 00.30hrs. The venue was open. As Police entered the
venue there was a DJ set up directly to the left hand side as you enter playing loud music. There was around 30
to 40 customers inside. Some smoking Shisha in the enclosed premises. A number of tables had hot food in front
of them still eating. Bottles of wine in wine coolers on the tables, multiple drinks being consumed. Extremely
drunk people on the premises. One in particular could not walk straight and another that was passed out in the
toilets which had to be carried out by friends. Thus showing irresponsible behaviour by Mr Algul as he should not
of allowed his customers to get into.that state.
Police approached Mr ALGUL and asked what was going on and why he was still open. Mr ÁLGUL was very
defensive and stated that he had appealed the decision. Police did not understand what he meant by appeal as
Mr ALGUL has not applied for a variation of his licence to extend his licensable activities.
Police asked Mr ALGUL to see his CCTV for the previous Saturday 01/09/2024 as police were made aware of an
'assault that took place inside his venue. Mr ALGUL refused to show police his CCTV even though this is a
condition on his licence. All Mr ALGUL could say was "Take me to court." Every time police tried to talk to Mr
ALGUL he would just continue to talk over police and constantly interrupt.

Premises Application

$

6 Reviewof Premises or Club
Page 8



As the venue was trading past its opening hours without the correct authorisation thus being an offence of,
unauthorised licensable activities under section 136 of the licensing act 2003.
A number of conditions were breached on his licence and Offences identified under the Licensing Act 2003-
Section 136, unauthorised licensable activities and Section 138, keeping alcohol for unauthorised sale.

Statements and BWV provided by:

PC MCINNES
PC HICKS
PC GRAVES

Visit to the Venue on the 25/10/2024

Police attended the venue on the 25/10/2025 to serve Mr Algul a Summons to hear an application for a closure
order for the venue on the 07/11/2024.

Visit to the Venue on the 02/11/2024

Police attended the venue on the 02/11/2024 at 23:30hrs. As police approached the entrance to the venue a
vehicle stopped outside the entrance and a group of people exited the vehicle. This group was greeted by door
staff. Police walked past the door staff and made my way towards the front door. The door was locked. Door
staff approached police asking if they could help. Door staff were told that police were conducting a licensing
visit. Door staff knocked on the door and police granted entry. Inside the venue was full with about 50 people
inside. The venue was full of smoke due to a large number of people smoking shisha and cigarettes inside the
enclosed premises. Loud music was playing inside that could be heard from outside the venue. Mr Algul
approached police and asked to talk in the reception area. Mr Algul appeared not to care that he was operating
beyond his licensable hours even though he was served a summons the week before for a closure order
regarding the unauthorised licensable activities taking place. Whilst Mr Aigu I was talking to police his staff were
still accepting guests into the venue and shown to tables. Thus showing no regard for the law.

Statement and BWV provided by:

PC MCINNES

I have been a licensing officer for Brent for over two years. Mr Algul is the most disrespectful and obstructive
Designated Premises Supervisor I have ever dealt with. Mr Algul has no regard for the licensing laws nor does he
up hold the four licensing objectives. Mr Algul is not a fit or proper person to hold a licence. This has been
demonstrated by him constantly breaching the conditions on his premises licence. Mr Algul has been given the
opportunity to rectify the issues with the breached conditions but has decided to ignore police advice and
continue to carry on unauthorised licensable activities.

Summary

Alaturca lounge had a review of their licence earlier in the year and was suspended for a period of time. During
this time Mr Algul showed no regard for the decision of the review and continued to provide licensable activities.
He showed no respect to the police as an appropriate authority when he was warned and advised regarding the
unauthorised licensable activities. To emphasise the fact that he showed no respect was the visit on the
07/09/2024 where Mr Algul refused to comply with conditions on his licence, when police asked to view CCTV he
blatantly refused and his answer to police was, "Take me to court."

Police have tried to work with the licence holder and he has refused to take on any advice given or to adhere to
any warnings. Extra conditions were added to the Premises Licence after the last review. These extra conditions

Premises Application

¢

7 Review of Premises or Club

Page 9



have not helped.
Police are of the opinion that the venue and staff are in incapable of upholding the licensing objectives and
running the venue in a legal manner and therefore see the only remedy is revocation of the premises license.

Premises Application

¢

8 Review of Premises or Club
Page 10



Premises Application

,

9 . Review of Premises or Club

Page 11



Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before?
Please tick ✓ Yeso

If yes, please state the date of that application
Day Month Year

I I I I I I I I I
If you have made representations relating to this premises before, please state what they were
and when you made them

Premises Application 10 Review of Premises or Club

Page 12



Checklist

■ I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate

■ I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements
my application will be rejected

--- .

I

Please tick ✓ Yes

X

X

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 3- Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 4). If signing ·
on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

. < .e gru?Signature

1
_. ..

Date ..'..~ !.t./?.?..~.4.., .
Capacity ft::./~~ 9.ff•~~················ .. ··············· .
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Postcode

Telephone number

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

Data Protection: The London Borough ofBrent will use this information for the purposes of The Licensing Act 2003 and related
purposes. Any member of the public may examine the application form on request. In addition, this information may be disclosed to
the Police, The London Fire andEmergency Planning Authority, relevant ward Councillors and other Council departments.

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers, and to this end may use the information you have provided
on this form for the prevention and detection of fraud. It may also share this information with law enforcement agencies and other
bodies responsible for auditing or administering publiè funds for these purposes. '

Premises Application

%

11 Review of Premises or Club
Page 13



Notes for Guidance
1. The ground{s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are included in the
grounds for review if available.

3. The application form must be signed.

4. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have
actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Please return the completed form and any accompanying documents to the following
address with a copy to the premises licence holder / Club that the application relates to:-

Regulatory Services (Licensing)
Brent Council
Fifth Floor
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HA9 0FJ

2 020 8937 5359 Email: business.licence@brent.gov.uk

Cheques should be crossed and made payable to London Borough of Brent.

Please follow the instructions in the checklist on page 14 to submit the relevant copies to
the responsible authorities. Contact details shown below:

Chief Officer of Police
Brent Licensing Department
Fifth Floor
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HA90FJ

Tel: 020 8733 3206

Environmental Health
Fifth Floor
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HA9 0FJ

Tel: 020 8937 5252 .

Area Planning Service
Brent Civic Centre
EngineersWay
Wembley
HA90FJ

Tel: 020 8937 5210

Premises Application

%

North West Area 1.
London Fire Brigade
169 Union Street
London
SE1 OLL

Tel: 020 8555 1200 x38778

Children's Services
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HA9 0FJ

Public Safety Team
Fifth Floor •
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HA9 0FJ

Tel: 020 8937 5359

12

Trading Standards
Fifth Floor
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HA90FJ

Tel: 020 8937 5555

Licensing Authority
Fifth Floor
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley
HA90FJ
Tel: 020 8937 5359

DAAT
Public Health Directorate
Wembley Centre for .Health
and Care
116 Chaplin Road
Wembley
HA04UZ

Review of Premises or Club
Page 14



THE COMMISSIONER OF POLICE OF THE METROPOLIS Applicant 

‐V‐ 

Alaturca, The Lodge, Kingsbury Road, London, Brent, NW9 9HA 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

APPLICANT’S BUNDLE 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

Page 15



Review of licence

 BETWEEN 

THE COMMISSIONER OF POLICE OF THE METROPOLIS Applicant 

‐v‐ 

Alaturca Lounge  

______________________________ 

INDEX TO APPLICANT BUNDLE 

________________________________ 

TAB DOCUMENT  DATE  PAGE# 

Over View Statement 1‐4 

 

 

MG 11 ‐ Sullivan 7‐9 

MG 11 ‐ McInnes 10‐11 

MG 11 ‐ Hicks 12‐13 

MG 11 ‐ McInnes 14‐15 

MG 11 ‐ Hicks 16 

MG 11 ‐ McInnes 17‐18 

MG 11 ‐ Hicks 19‐21 

MG 11 Graves 22‐23 

Premises Licence 24‐32 

Review Application 33‐47 

Decision Notice 48‐61 

   

End 

MG 11 McInnes 62-64

Page 16



1

Page 17



2

Page 18



3

Page 19



4

Page 20



7

Page 21



8

Page 22



9

Page 23



10

Page 24



11

Page 25



12

Page 26



13

Page 27



Signature: 

Signature Witnessed by: 

Page 1 of 2 
eStatement no: NW-1008465-2024 

MG11 RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9) 

URN 

Statement of: Constable Brendon McInnes 
Age if under 18: Over 18
Occupation:  Police officer 

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in 
evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it, anything which I know to be false, or do 
not believe to be true. 

Signature: 

Date:  12 Sep 2024 

This statement refers to a licensing visist conducted at Alaturca Lounge on the 22/08/2024 and a closure notice 
was served under section 19 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001. 

The people I will be referring to in this statement is my colleague PC HICKS 3703NW and Mr ULGUL the 
Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor. 

On Thursday the 22/08/2024 I conducted a Licensing Visit at Alaturca Lounge, Kingsbury Road, NW9 9HA due 
to constant breaches of their premises licence and constant licensing breaches. On Thursday the 22/08/2024 I 
was parked up in an unmarked police car and observed Alaturca Lounge from a short distance with PC HICKS 
3703NW. The Venue has a licence to sell alcohol from Monday to Sunday between 10.00hrs and 23.00hrs and 
be open to the public Monday to Sunday between 08.00hrs and 23.00hrs. At 23.25hrs I observed two males 
enter Alaturca Lounge and the two males did not leave. At 23.30hrs I entered Alaturca Lounge with PC HICKS 
3703NW. As I entered their was music playing which was turned off almost immediately as Mr ALGUL noticed 
that I was inside his venue. There were approximately six customers inside the venue some with drinks in front 
of them and all smoking Shisha including Mr ALGUL. PC HICKS 3703NW then pointed out the two males to me 
that we observed entering five minutes before. These two males were also smoking Shisha. I explained to MR 
ALGUL that I was there to conduct a visit and asked to see his Premises Licence. Mr ALGUL replied that he 
does not have it. I then asked if he had his Personal Licence with him to which he replied I don't have it. I then 
pointed out to Mr ALGUL that he should have been closed at 23.00hrs. Mr ALGUL said that he was just waiting 
for people to finnish and leave. I pointed out to Mr ALGUL that I had witnessed two customers walk in at 
23.25hrs and that he should of been closed at 23.00hrs. Mr ALGUL told me that I was incorrect and that his 
customers had been inside for some time. I then walked over to the two males that I observed enter at 23.25hrs 
with my BWV activated and asked the two males how long they had been there. The two males informed me 
that they had just arrived with in the last 10 minutes. 

I then sat down with Mr ALGUL and went through his licence conditions with him. Mr ALGUL had breached a 
number of his conditions. Mr ALGUL could not produce his Premises Licence. He could not produce his 
personal licence. Breaches on the licence are as follows. Incident log could not be produced. Training records 
could not be produced. Mr ALGUL was open beyond 23.00hrs on the 22/08/2024.  
Any breach of his licence will deem his licence not valid therefore any sale of alcohol or licensable activity 
would be unlawful. I then served Mr ALGUL a Closure Notice under section 19 Criminal Justice and Police Act 
2001 at 23.57hrs. Mr ALGUL acknowledged the closure notice by signing it. 

Offences identified were: 
Section 57 Licencing Act 2003 - Failure to produce a premises licence or certified copy. 

14

Page 28



Continuation of Statement of: Constable Brendon McInnes 

Witness Signature: 

Signature Witnessed by: 

Page 2 of 2 
eStatement no NW-1008465-2024 

MG11C RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

Section 135 Licensing Act 2003 - Failure to produce a personal licence to a police officer. 
Section 136 Licensing Act 2003 - Carrying on or attempting to carry on a licensable activity on or from any 
premises otherwise and in accordance with an authorisation. 
Section 138 Licensing act 2003 - Keeping alcohol on a premises for an unauthorised sale. 

I exhibit my Body Worn Video from this visit on the 22/08/2024 as: 
Visit to Alaturca Lounge on the 22/08/2024 as BRM/04. 

15

Page 29



 

Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………................................................................ 

Signature Witnessed by Signature:…………………………………………………………........................................ 
Page 1 of 1 

RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11C 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 99/12 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

 Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B 

URN 

Statement of:  Stephen Hicks 

Age if under 18:  Over 18 (if over 18 insert  ‘over 18’) Occupation:  Police constable 

This statement (consisting of 1 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and 
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it 
anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………............................. Date:  28/08/2024 

This statement refers to an incident where I attended Alaturka, KINGSBURY ROAD, BRENT 
during a licensing visit. 

On THURSDAY 22nd AUGUST 2024 I was on duty in plain clothes conducting licensing visits 
in the WEMBLEY area in the company of PC McInnes 1187NW. 
At around 2320hours we were in the Kingsbury area by ALATURKA which is a restaurant 
and Shisha bar on KINGSBURY ROAD.  This restaurant should be closed by 2300 hours. 

At 2325 we noticed 2 males walk down VALLEY DRIVE, cross the road and enter 
ALATURKA.  The doors were still open with a sign outside the venue stating that they were 
still open.  We waited around 5 minutes to see if they males would be rejected service 
however they did not come back out of the venue. 
At around 2330hours myself and PC McInnes entered ALATURKA and identified ourselves 
as licensing officers.  There was music still playing inside the venue when we entered and 
this was swiftly turned off when we identified ourselves as licensing officers. 

As we entered I noticed that there were 4 customers inside the premises.  A male and 
female and the 2 males that entered 5 minutes before ourselves.  All were smoking Shisha in 
the enclosed area of the restaurant.  Also the male and female still appeared to have drinks 
in front of them.   
I went out around the rear of the premises and noticed that there were still red hot coals 
ready to use which had not yet been banked and extinguished. 

PC McInnes sat down and spoke with the manager of the premises and went through all of 
conditions on the premises license, explaining what ones had been breached and issued a 
Section 19 closure notice giving him a week to rectify these issues before considering further 
action. 

16

Page 30



Signature: 

Signature Witnessed by: 

Page 1 of 2 
eStatement no: NW-1008481-2024 

MG11 RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

STATEMENT OF WITNESS 
(Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9) 

URN 

Statement of: Constable Brendon McInnes 
Age if under 18: Over 18
Occupation:  Police officer 

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in 
evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it, anything which I know to be false, or do 
not believe to be true. 

Signature: 

Date:  12 Sep 2024 

This statement refers to a Licensing Visit I conducted at Alaturca Lounge on the 07/09/2024. This visit is a 
follow up visit after a Closure Notice was served on the premises under Section 19 Criminal Justice and Police 
Act 2001 on the 22/08/2024. 

The people I will refer to in this statement are my Colleagues PC Graves 3122NW and PC Hicks 3073NW. I will 
also refer to Mr Gockan ALGUL who the Closure Notice was served as he is the Premises Licence Holder and 
the Designated Premises Supervisor. 

On Saturday 07/09/2024 I attended Alaturca Lounge, Kingsbury Road, NW9 9HA with PC Graves 3122NW and 
PC Hicks 3073NW. As mentioned in my previous statements Alaturca Lounge has a Premises Licence which 
allows the venue to sell alcohol Monday to Sunday from 10.00hrs to 23.00hrs and be open to the public 
Monday to Sunday from 08.00hrs to 23.00hrs. The licence does not allow for late night refreshments meaning 
that hot food and hot drinks are not permitted after 23.00hrs. 

I entered Alaturca Lounge on Saturday the 07/09/2024 at 00.30hrs. There was a DJ set up to the left had side 
as you enter and was playing loud music. I observed a number of tables that were occupied by customers with 
bottles of wine, bottles of beers and hot food in front of them. There were about 20 to 25 customers inside. 
There were tables that were smoking Shisha in the enclosed premises with other customers smoking normal 
cigarettes within the enclosed premises. Mr ALGUL then approached me and I asked Mr ALGUL why he was 
still open? Mr ALGUL replied that they had put in an appeal. This made no sense to me as the licensing team 
are unaware of any variation applied for to the licence. I aske Mr ALGUL if he had his premises licence with him 
to which he provided a copy of. I then pointed out to Mr ALGUL that he should have been closed at 23.00hrs 
and as he was still open that all the activity taking place was  illegal. I then noticed a male wearing a white t-
shirt and a white baseball cap approach myself and PC Hicks 3703NW and offer us some fruit to which we 
declined. This male then through the piece of fruit in the direction of PC Hicks 3703NW and said "Fuck You." 
This male then staggered out the front entrance. Whilst I was continuing to Speak to Mr ALGUL, the male in the 
white t-shirt and white baseball cap entered again with a female and they headed towards the toilet. The female 
said that they were just trying to get their friend out that was sleeping in the toilet. I took this as the friend was 
drunk and passed out in the toilet. I then pointed this out to Mr ALGUL and said that you should not allow the 
customers to get into that state whilst on his premises. Mr ALGUL replied saying they are not drunk. I then 
moved into the reception/ entrance area and watched the male with the white t-shirt and white baseball cap exit 
with the female that entered earlier, they left with another male also wearing a white t-shirt. This male was 
extremely drunk, could not walk on his own and had to be assisted by others just to stand up. Again I pointed 
this out to Mr ALGUL. I Said, "You cant tell me that they are not drunk?" Mr ALGUL did not reply. I then 
followed the males outside and observed them stagger up the road trying to assist each other in standing up. I 

17

Page 31



Continuation of Statement of: Constable Brendon McInnes 

Witness Signature: 

Signature Witnessed by: 

Page 2 of 2 
eStatement no NW-1008481-2024 

MG11C RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

watched them then fall into rubbish bins near the bus stop. I continued my conversation with Mr ALGUL outside 
the entrance and asked Mr ALGUL to see his CCTV as I was made aware of an incident that occurred the 
week before. Mr ALGUL refused to show me CCTV and just replied "Take me to court, take me to court." I 
asked Mr ALGUL if I could see his training records and refusal logs and again Mr ALGUL replied, "Take me to 
court." I then tried to walk back into the venue to continue my observations. As I walked to the entrance Mr 
ALGUL deliberately blocked my entrance and said, "Why do you need to go back inside? You have already 
been inside." I then pointed out to Mr ALGUL that obstructing an authorised person from entering is an offence 
and could be arrested. (Section 179 of the licensing act 2003). Mr ALGUL continued to be obstructive and 
continued talking over police every time I tried to explain anything to him. 

Mr ALGUL is the Designated Premises Supervisor and is meant to up hold the licensing objectives. I have 
warned Mr ALGUL and given him a number of chances to correct the errors on his licence. Mr ALGUL has 
ignored the warning and not taken the chance to correct the errors, thus showing me that he has no regard for 
the conditions of his licence nor the law. Mr ALGUL was obstructive and rude when dealing with police. 

I have saved my Body Worn Video and exhibit this as exhibit BRM/05 

18

Page 32



 

Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………................................................................ 

Signature Witnessed by Signature:…………………………………………………………........................................ 
Page 1 of 3 

RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11C 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 99/12 

WITNESS STATEMENT 

 Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B 

URN 

Statement of:  Stephen Hicks 

Age if under 18:  Over 18 (if over 18 insert  ‘over 18’) Occupation:  Police constable 

This statement (consisting of 3 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and 
I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it 
anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true. 

Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………............................. Date: 7/9/24 

This statement refers to an incident where I attended Alaturka Lounge, KINGSBURY ROAD, 
BRENT during a licensing visit. 

On SATURDAY 7th SEPTEMBER 2024 I was on duty in plain clothes conducting late night 
licensing visits in the company of PC Graves 3122NW and PC McInnes 1187NW. 
At around 0030hours we attended Alaturka on KINGSBURY ROAD, NW9 9HA as we have 
suspected them of breaching the conditions on their premises licence. 
We parked our unmarked police vehicle on VALLEY DRIVE which is opposite Alaturka 
Lounge and while still on VALLEY DRIVE walking towards Alartrka I could hear music 
coming from the premises especially when the front door was opened.  Their licence 
conditions are such that they are only supposed to play music until 2300 and we were now 
an hour and half past this time. 
We have approached the entrance to the premises and I noticed patrons leaving but as we 
walked in there was still music being played by a DJ and food and drink still being eaten and 
drank with serving staff walking around seeing to the customers that were seating and no 
one else appeared to be getting ready to get up and leave.  I also noticed at least 3-4 tables 
with Shisha pipes smoking freely.  This restaurant is a completely enclosed premises 
therefore smoking is not allowed inside this premises as per the Health Act 2006. 

An IC6 male approached me who was clearly drunk offered me what appeared to be a slice 
of an apple, I politely refused and this male threw the apple slice in my direction exclaiming 
“fuck you”.  I pointed out to the manager of the premises Mr ALGUL who had been speaking 
with PC McInnes that this person was clearly drunk and should have been ‘cut off’. 
I overheard other patrons say that there was another male passed out in the toilet this was 
pointed out to Mr ALGUL who seemed oblivious as what was happening in his own 
establishment and security staff were sent in. 
An IC1 male appeared from the toilet who was completely unable to stand on his own 2 feet 
and was being propped up and walked out of the premises by a female friend.  I could clearly 
see sweat on this mans face and he could not focus at all and was too drunk to even speak. 
The previous drunk IC6 male then walked over and said goodbye having apparently forgot 
about swearing at me less than 3 minutes previously.  While talking he was unsteady on his 
feet, could not focus properly and was talking with a drunken slur, he was heavily 
intoxicated. 
Mr ALGUL seemed unconcerned at the state of these people in his venue. 

19

Page 33



 

Continuation of Statement of: 

Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………................................................................ 

Signature Witnessed by Signature:…………………………………………………………........................................ 
Page 2 of 3 

RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11C 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 99/12 

We walked to the street out the front of the premises as PC McInnes was making sure the 
drunk males were leaving and also being supported by friends.  
Mr ALGUL seemed to get quite perturbed at this point and was arguing with PC McInnes 
PC McInnes asked what time the premises had closed the previous Saturday and Mr ALGUL 
responded that he did not know.  At This PC McInnes asked to see the CCTV and Mr 
ULGUL refused to show it to us there and then and instead told us to request it through his 
solicitor despite the conditions of his licence stipulating that it had to be provided/shown on 
request. 
While standing outside the venue the drunk IC6 male attempted to regain entry into the 
venue and I had to tell him that it was ow closed and that he was far too drunk to be allowed 
back in anyway. 
We walked back into the premises with Mr ALGUL who at this point was becoming 
increasingly obstructive and argumentative.  When challenged on why the venue was still 
open at 0030 he kept saying he was appealing something.  I then asked the direct question 
of what he was trying to appeal and he stated that it was hi operating hours and he was 
trying to extend his hours to finish at 0200.  I told Mr ALGUL that although he was appealing 
his hours that he still had to adhere to the current operating hours on his licence and would 
only be able to operate past 2300 if his extension of hours was granted.  Mr ALGUL 
appeared uninterested and even looked away from me dismissively when I was explaining 
this. 
I also told Mr ALGUL that we had given him every opportunity to correct his breaches and 
adhere to his licence conditions to which he tried to argue that we hadn’t and I therefore 
reminded him that I had been to the venue at least 4 times where his breaches had been 
pointed out, this has been over a period of about 6 weeks with plenty of time to adhere to the 
conditions of his licence. 
PC McInnes had asked to see a copy of the premises licence and Mr ALGUL had continually 
refused to produce it, stating that he had emailed him a copy already.  It is an offence to fail 
to produce a copy of a premises licence when asked as it is a legal requirement under the 
licensing act to keep a copy of the licence on the premises. 
I believed that the refusal was a way for Mr ALGUL to try and frustrate PC McInnes as he 
had become increasingly argumentative with him while we were present at the venue.  I 
asked Mr ALGUL to show me the licence and Mr ALGUL handed me a copy of his licence. 
Upon looking at what I was handed I immediately noticed the Brent Council logo appeared 
significantly different and also that the signature box did not appear to be signed.   
Due to this I was unsure if this was a legitimate copy of his licence.  As we had a copy of his 
licence with us I decided to check to compare the conditions to make sure Mr ALGULs copy 
was accurate. 
What I noticed was that the copy Mr ALGUL handed to me did not have the schedule of 
operating times or licensable activity permitted attached however the conditions under annex 
1,2 and 3 were all accurate and correct.  The licence shown to me by Mr ALGUL was not 
signed, certified or complete. 
While going through his licence I once again pointed out to Mr ALGUL that there were till 
people smoking inside the premises to which he told me that it wasn’t my problem and a 
matter for the court. 
Once I had finished looking through the licence I handed it back to Mr ALGUL.  I had also 
pointed out the lack of signature, wrong logo and missing items to which he just shrugged 
stating that this was the copy he had. 

20

Page 34



 

Continuation of Statement of: 

Witness Signature: …………………………………………………………................................................................ 

Signature Witnessed by Signature:…………………………………………………………........................................ 
Page 3 of 3 

RESTRICTED (when complete) MG11C 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 99/12 

Our whole time present at the venue I saw no attempt by Mr ALGUL or any of his staff to 
usher the patrons out of the venue and close up for the night despite us attending well past 
the licence closing time. 
We left the venue at around 0100 and when we went back to our car a dark vehicle parked 
up close by and 4 well dressed people got out and started walking towards Alaturka, at this 
we walked back up the road to see if they were going to Alaturka.  They made a bee line for 
the restaurant and attempted entry, they were denied entry however I believe this was only 
the case as we were still close-by. 

21

Page 35



22

Page 36



23

Page 37



24

Page 38



25

Page 39



26

Page 40



27

Page 41



28

Page 42



29

Page 43



30

Page 44



31

Page 45



32

Page 46



33

Page 47



34

Page 48



35

Page 49



36

Page 50



37

Page 51



38

Page 52



39

Page 53



40

Page 54



41

Page 55



42

Page 56



43

Page 57



44

Page 58



45

Page 59



46

Page 60



47

Page 61



48

Page 62



49

Page 63



50

Page 64



51

Page 65



52

Page 66



53

Page 67



54

Page 68



55

Page 69



56

Page 70



57

Page 71



58

Page 72



59

Page 73



60

Page 74



61

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 

  Brent Civic Centre 

  Engineers Way 

  Wembley 

  Middlesex HA9 0FJ 

 email edwin.maldoom@brent.gov.uk 

 web www.brent.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
Business Licence  
Regulatory Services 
Brent Council 
Engineers Way 
Wembley 
HA9 0FJ 
 
10 December 2024 
 
Ref: 33504 
 
Dear Business Licence, 
 
Representation in support of the application to review the premises licence for Alaturca 
The Lodge, Kingsbury Road, London, Brent, NW9 9HA (Premises Licence Number: 16394). 
 
The above-mentioned application has been made under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
As a delegated officer of the Licensing Authority, acting as a defined ‘Responsible Authority’ under 
the Licensing Act 2003, I confirm my representation in support of the application submitted by the 
Metropolitan Police Service. 
 
This representation is made on the grounds that the continued operation of this premises licence, 
without further intervention, is likely to undermine three out of the four licensing objectives: 
 
• The prevention of crime and disorder; 
• Public safety; 
• The prevention of public nuisance;  
• The protection of children from harm; 
 
Licensing History  
 
The premises licence was originally granted on 22 July 2019, following the agreement of several 
conditions with various responsible authorities during the 28-day consultation period.  
 
The initial description of the premises within the original application stated: “The restaurant 
provides food, burgers, pizza, bbq, it is a coffeshop serving cakes, ice cream, waffles, crepes. 
We wish to supply wine and beers in the area and customers will enjoy wine with their pizza, 
burgers, bbq menu.” 
 
The current premises licence holder, Gokcan Algul, has held the licence since 6 April 2023. Mr 
Algul has also been named as the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) from the same date.  
 
 

Page 79

http://www.brent.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 3 

Previous Review Hearing  
 
The premises has been subject to one prior review hearing, which took place on 8 May 2024. On 
this occasion, the application to review the premises licence was brought by the Licensing 
Authority on the grounds that all four licensing objectives were being undermined. The basis for 
the review cited failures such as, non-compliance with premises licence conditions & permitted 
hours, unauthorised licensable activities, poor management practises, and numerous noise-led 
complaints.  
 
The application was supported by Brent Council’s Nuisance Control Team, Brent Council’s 
Planning Authority, Brent Council’s Environmental Health Department (Food Safety) and six other 
persons (members of the public, two of whom attended the hearing). 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee determined to suspend the licence for three months, modify one 
condition, and impose additional conditions.  
 
Two of these conditions, set out within Annex Three of the premises licence, are as follows:  
 
Annex Three, Condition 29 - An appropriately qualified and registered acoustic technician, 
whose qualification and registration must be approved by Brent Council’s Nuisance Control Team, 
shall be instructed to carry out a survey and recommend a bespoke sound insulation plan which 
shall include consideration of insulation, a sound limiter and appropriate double lobby doors 
between the interior of the premises and any uncovered or partially enclosed area. 
 
Annex Three, Condition 30 - Any recommendation made by that technician must be 
implemented in full, and the result approved by Brent Council’s Nuisance Control Team, before 
licensable activities may again be undertaken following the period of suspension. 
 
Despite these requirements being clearly outlined in the decision notice, Ketan Joshi, Nuisance 
Control Officer, has confirmed that the premises licence holder, Mr Algul, has failed to comply 
with the conditions stated above. It is noted that, Mr Algul has not taken any steps to contact Brent 
Council’s Nuisance Control Team to seek approval for the appointment of a registered acoustic 
technician, nor has he submitted a noise survey or provided a sound insulation plan.   
 
Additionally, Ketan Joshi noted that noise complaints about the premises have continued, and 
during periodic NCT patrols, noise from the premises has remained audible from outside. This 
further indicates that the premises have failed to comply with the conditions outlined in the 
decision notice. [Annex A – Confirmation from Brent Council’s NCT 05.12.2024] 
 
Furthermore, Mr Algul stated to the Licensing Authority that he had appealed the Licensing Sub-
Committee’s decision. However, despite being asked on three separate occasions to provide 
proof of the appeal, Mr Algul failed to respond to any of these requests. [Annex B1 – Appeal 
Warning Letter 24.06.2024, Annex B2 – Appeal Warning Letter 24.06.2024] 
 
As no proof was provided either by Mr Algul or Willesden Magistrates’ Court to confirm that an 
appeal had been formally lodged, The Licensing Authority reasonably presumes that the three-
months suspension took effect on 4 June 2024 and ended on 4 September 2024.  
 
Within the review application, PC Brendon Mcinnes highlights that the premises not only remained 
open and carried out unauthorised licensable activities during this suspension period, but also 
operated beyond the terminal hour of 23:00 for permitted licensable activities on numerous 
occasions.  

Page 80



Page 3 of 3 

 
Summary 
 
The Licensing Authority fully supports the Metropolitan Police Service’s stance of revocation 
within the review application. Mr Algul has held the premises licence for less than two years, and 
this is the second review hearing within seven months regarding his premises licence.    
 
It is important to note that this is not a re-run of the Licensing Sub-Committee review held on 8 
May 2024. The evidence presented in the Police's review application, and this supporting 
representation, highlights repeated licensing offences and continued non-compliance following 
the previous hearing.   
 
There is a reasonable expectation that any licence holder that has been subject to a review 
hearing would take immediate and decisive steps to fully comply with the terms of their premises 
licence, such as adhering to all conditions & permitted hours, while going over and above to 
promote the four licensing objectives.  
 
However, the premises licence holder has instead ignored the Sub-Committee's decision notice 
following the hearing by: 
- Conducting unauthorised licensable activities during the three-month suspension period. 
- Failing to provide any evidence of an appeal notice, despite numerous written requests. 
- Failing to comply with the additional Annex Three conditions imposed by the Licensing Sub-
Committee.   
- Repeatedly undertaking unauthorised licensable activities beyond the permitted/terminal hours 
stipulated on the premises licence, despite multiple visits by the Police and an interview under 
caution.  
 
The premises licence holder has had ample opportunity to address these issues, rectify the 
concerns raised by the Police and the Licensing Authority, and demonstrate responsible 
management. However, given the persistent non-compliance, multiple licensing offences, and 
lack of meaningful engagement with responsible authorities have entirely eroded any confidence 
in his ability or willingness to promote the licensing objectives or adhere to the terms of his 
premises licence. 
 
Section 182 Guidance (Paragraph 11.23) advises licensing authorities to take decisive action, 
including revocation, when premises are found to be trading irresponsibly and where other 
measures have proven insufficient.   
 
Given the licence holders’ failure to comply with the three-month suspension and additional 
imposed conditions, the repeated offences outlined within the review application, and his 
disinterest in engaging with the responsible authorities - the Licensing Authority is of the viewpoint 
that alternative measures, such as the removal of the DPS, curtailment of licensable hours, or 
even a further suspension, would be counterintuitive. The Licensing Authority therefore firmly 
believes that revocation is the only proportionate and effective course of action.  
 
Yours sincerely,  

 
Edwin Maldoom 
Licensing Enforcement Officer  

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
BRENT CIVIC CENTRE 
ENGINEERS WAY 
WEMBLEY 
HA9 OFJ 
 

 TEL 

EMAIL 

WEB 

(020) 8937 5359 

business.licence@brent.gov.uk 

 http://www.brent.gov.uk 

   
  Date: 24 June 2024  

  
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Gokcan Algul 
Alaturca 
The Lodge 
Kingsbury Road 
London  
NW9 9HA 
 
24 June 2024 
 
Our Ref: 31169 
 
Dear Mr Algul,   
 
Licensing Act 2003 – Suspension Notice 3 Months  
Re: Alaturca, The Lodge, Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 9HA 
 
I am writing to inform you that the Council have not received formal notice from the 
Magistrates Court or any proof of appeal of the licensing committee decision from 
you. 
 
Please could you provide us the evidence of proof of appeal to the Magistrates with 
24 hours of the date of this letter as you may be committing criminal offences.  
 
Please note the following dates apply: 
 
3 June 2024 – End of Appeal Period 
4 June 2024 – Suspension Period Starts 
4 September 2024 – Suspension Period Ends 
5 September 2024 – Licence is reinstated with existing and new conditions imposed 
by the committee in place. 
 
As you were the premises licence holder at the time of the review hearing, I am 
mindful that you are fully aware you do not have the permitted authorisation to 
undertake these licensable activities.  
 
It is important to note that undertaking licensable activities without the required 
authorisation under the Licensing Act 2003 is considered a criminal offence. 

Page 89

mailto:business.licence@brent.gov.uk


This is pursuant to Section 136(1)(a) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Unauthorised 
licensable activities). If prosecuted, a person found guilty of this offence could 
face an unlimited fine and/or imprisonment for up to 6 months.  
 
Given the above information, if you are undertaking any licensable activities without 
the required authorisation under the Licensing Act 2003, I advise you to cease these 
activities immediately as this constitutes a criminal offence under Section 136 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, and you could be liable for prosecution.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this letter or require clarification on what you can 
or cannot lawfully do under the Licensing Act 2003, please feel free to contact me 
using the details provided above. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Linda Legister 
Applications Officer 
Licensing Authority 

Page 90



   

 

This license must be revoked as a matter of urgency. The licensee demonstrated a complete contempt for any of 

the licensing objectives or indeed any regulations at the previous review hearing but was treated with excessive 

leniency by the then sub-committee in a perverse and irrational decision to merely suspend the license for a short 

period- a decision that the licensee simply ignored by carrying on as before. I draw the committee's attention to 

the fact that following that decision and during the period when the license was suspended the licensee 

approached me when I foolishly walked past the premises on my way home, spat on me, called me a 

mother****** and told me (twice) that he was going to f*** my mother in her grave -all within yards of the children's 

playground in Roe Green Park simply because I had attempted to give evidence at the earlier hearing. I  

 

 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Having read the final review, there is overwhelming evidence that he has no respect for the licensing law and 

very disrespectful to the laws of this country and ultimately, the Police. In fact, I read he has other outlets that 

serve alcohol, so he is aware of the law but appears to ignore it. As far as public safety is concerned, this 

property is in an open park. Children from the neighbouring school walk through; it is next to a nursery and 

children's playground, so it really is a very unsuitable location for anything other than a cafe. The Hearing 

uncovered all sorts of antisocial behaviour, noise and health and safety issues, which is also revealed in the final 

review.  

 I object to 

the granting of an alcohol licence at these premises. It is totally inappropriate in this location. 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

The Police application relates to Prevention of Crime & Disorder, Prevention of Public Nuisance and Public 

Safety. The  supports the Police application for 

revocation of the License, in particular, on the grounds of Prevention of Public Nuisance as our residents have 

been affected by noise from the venue. The Police case is also strong in respect of the other licensing objectives. 

As  we have also made representations on the Appeal against the Enforcement Notice issued by 

Brent Council which is now with the Planning Inspectorate. We supported the action taken by Brent Council and 

noted that the appellant did not dispute that a breach of planning control had taken place. This is the second 

application for revocation of the licence and the Licence Holder has had ample opportunity to comply. Any further 

concessions are likely to mean more of a drain on police and official time in dealing with continuing non 

compliance. This would be difficult to defend to taxpayers. In addition it is depriving residents of a community 

facility that would be more appropriate in a park near residential areas and a Further Education facility and 

nursery. 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Application for the Review a Premises Licence by Metropolitan Police for the premises known as Alaturca Lounge, The Lodge, Kingsbury Road, NW9 9HA, pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	3.2 Alaturca Review - Application
	3.3 Alaturca Review - Final bundle - Redacted
	MG11 Sullivan 20-01-24
	MG 11 MCINNES 20-07-24
	PC Hicks MG11 20-07-24
	MG 11 MCINNES 22-08-2024
	MG11 HICKS 22-08-2024
	MG 11 MCINNES 07-09-2024
	MG11 Hicks 07-09-2024
	MG11 PC GRAVES Alaturca 08-08-2024
	Alaturca Premises Licence
	Review application for Alaturca Lounge
	Decision Notice of Review Hearing

	3.4 Alaturca Review - Licensing Rep
	3.5 Alaturca Review - Annex A  Confirmation from Brent Councils NCT 05.12.2024
	3.6 Alaturca Review - Annex B1  Email request for appeal notice 19.06.2024
	3.7 Alaturca Review - Annex B2  Appeal Warning Letter 24.06.2024
	3.8 Alaturca Review - Resident Rep 1
	3.9 Alaturca Review - Resident Rep 2
	3.10 Alaturca Review - Resident Rep 3
	3.11 Alaturca Review - OS Map




